Not approved until next meeting
 LIBERTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

June 11, 2019	Meeting Summary	7:00 p.m.

I.	Call to Order 

The Liberty Planning and Zoning Commission met on Tuesday, June 11, 2019, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 101 East Kansas Street. A quorum being present, Chairman Rosekrans called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

II.	Roll Call

Commission members in attendance were: Rick Boswell, Judy Dilts, Patricia Evans, Walt Holt, Amy Howard, Tom Reinier, Dee Rosekrans and Ann Waterman.  Ken Personett was absent.  Representing staff were Katherine Sharp, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Peterman, City Planner; and Ben McCabe, Assistant Director of Public Works.  9 members of the public were in attendance.

III.	 Approval of Minutes 

Chairman Rosekrans asked if there were any questions or comments related to the minutes from the May meeting, seeing none he asked for a motion.
 
Commissioner Boswell moved to approve the regular session minutes from the May 14, 2019 meeting and Commissioner   Evans seconded the motion. The minutes were approved 7-0-1(Commissioner Waterman abstained). 

IV.	19-16FDP:  Final Development Plan for Mid-Continent Public Library – New 18,000 sf Library building with variance for metal siding proposed on Withers Rd. SE of the community center.      [Public Hearing]

Chairman Rosekrans stated that Commissioner Boswell would recuse himself due to a conflict of interest.

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Holt asked if by allowing the metal panels on the building, is the Commission is setting a precedent.

Mr. Peterman stated that each case is unique.  There are other buildings with metals panels used as architectural features.  In this case the metal panels are a primary material which is more than just an architectural feature.

Commissioner Holt asked if staff agreed with the applicant’s statement in the variance request letter that the City’s code prohibition on metal siding is to limit the cheap metal buildings in commercial areas.

Mr. Peterman stated that staff does agree with that statement.

Mike Heule, Helix Architecture Design, 1629 Walnut, KCMO is representing the applicant.  Also attending were Terry Parsons of Olsson and Jacob Wimmer from Mid-Continent Public Library.  Mr. Heule stated that the metal siding being requested is a typical feature in modern architecture.  The proposed metal product is a high quality material used to create verticality and texture for the façade. The amount of metal proposed is less than 50% of the façade, but is a primary material.

Commissioner Dilts asked if the metal was a less expensive product.

Mr. Heule stated that it is slightly less than brick but comparable to composite panels.

Chairman Rosekrans opened the Public Hearing portion for this case. He asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak, 

Jacob Wimmer, Mid Continent Public Library Capital Improvements Manager stated that the Library is in the middle of a 5 year work plan.  They have 24 remodels and 10 new build projects.  He is excited to bring this new Library to Liberty.

Chairman Rosekrans closed the public hearing.

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions, seeing none he asked for a motion.

Action: Commissioner Waterman moved to approve the case with the variance as presented in the staff report.   Commissioner Howard seconded the motion.

Vote: Motion passed 7-0-0
Yes: Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Reinier, Rosekrans, and Waterman
No:  None
Recusal: Boswell

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Monday, June 24, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

V.	19-17FP:  Final Plat for Mid-Continent Public Library – Plat of one, 5.9 acre lot on Withers Rd. SE of the community center

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked about the drainage ditch that has formed along the northern portion of the property.

Mr. McCabe stated that the ditch is formed from a culvert from Withers that released into the open field.  The applicant is proposing to install a pipe across the property and release the water into a basin that will dissipate the energy and release it to the creek to the east.

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any further questions, seeing none he asked for a motion.

Action: Commissioner Holt moved to approve the case as presented.   Commissioner Evans seconded the motion.

Vote: Motion passed 7-0-0
Yes:  Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Reinier, Rosekrans, and Waterman No: None
Recusal: Boswell

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Monday, June 24, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

Commissioner Boswell joined the meeting.

VI.	19-21A:  A request to amend the Unified Development Ordinance related to short term lending. [Public Hearing]

Ms. Sharp presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Dilts stated that there was a punctuation correction in the definition.

Ms. Sharp acknowledged the correction.

Commissioner Holt asked if the definition would have to be changed if the citizen vote regarding short term lending failed.

Ms. Sharp stated that this UDO change is a standalone component of our existing short term loan regulations.  It is updating the city’s definition.  The future vote on this issue would not affect this definition in the UDO.

Commissioner Reinier asked where the specific numbers were derived from in the definition.

Ms. Sharp stated the definition is directly from the submitted petition and the City’s attorney is in agreement with the definition.  Staff will research the origin of the statistic.

Commissioner Dilts stated that the specifics were researched by the committee that presented the petition.

Chairman Rosekrans opened the Public Hearing portion for this case. He asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak, seeing none he closed the public hearing.  

Action: Commissioner Holt moved to approve the case as presented.   Commissioner Dilts seconded the motion.

Vote: Motion passed 8-0-0
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Reinier, Rosekrans, and Waterman No: None
Abstain: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Monday, June 24, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

VII.	19-20A:  A request to amend the Unified Development Ordinance to adopt regulations relating to medical marijuana due to changes in state law. [Public Hearing]

Ms. Sharp presented the proposal as described in the staff report and a presentation about the voter approved Amendment 2. 

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Boswell asked if any of the proposed facilities could be combined.

 Ms. Sharp stated that it could be possible but not sure if it is feasible. Some facilities such a testing facilities are stand alone.

Chairman Rosekrans asked there could be an all-encompassing facility.

Ms. Sharp said no, because testing must be from an outside entity.

Commissioner Boswell asked if there was a defined amount for home growing operations.

Ms. Sharp said yes, that is defined in the State regulations as 6 flowering plants per patient.

Commissioner Boswell asked how this industry relates to HIPAA (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 is United States legislation that provides data privacy and security provisions for safeguarding medical information).

Ms. Sharp stated that the city will not have a database of home growing operations because of concerns related to maintaining HIPAA privacy.  

Commissioner Dilts asked why the State of Missouri chose a 1,000 foot buffer.

Ms. Sharp stated that she does not have that answer.  She said all the regulations rely upon research from states that allow Medical Marijuana.

Commissioner Dilts asked why the City is proposing a 100 foot buffer.

Ms. Sharp said it will mirror the city’s liquor laws.

Commissioner Dilts asked if we have information on buffer requirements from other states.

Ms. Sharp said staff does not have that information but has a table showing Missouri communities.

Commissioner Reinier asked if the City could limit number of businesses.

Ms. Sharp said that per state regulations there will be 24 dispensaries per congressional district.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if the City Council study session discussed the different buffer ranges.

Ms. Sharp said yes, the City council had multiple ideas with the majority suggesting the 100 ft buffer.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if the different uses would be regulated by zoning.

Ms. Sharp said yes, dispensaries in the commercial zones and cultivation in the industrial zones.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if there was any study into what the buffers would be like in the City.

Ms. Sharp stated that the City does have multiple buffer maps showing how different buffer distances affect the possible locations of Medical Marijuana businesses. Those maps were shown on the screen.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if in the future regulations on the use of Marijuana were loosened to allow recreational marijuana, how would the proposed ordinance be affected.

Ms. Sharp stated that this ordinance is very specific to the Medical Marijuana industry.  Future laws and regulations would have to be studied at that time.

Chairman Rosekrans stated that the state regulations are very clear on how proceeds from this type of business are to be used; is it true that the City would only realize Property and sales taxes from this industry.

Ms. Sharp said that is true.  The City cannot impose any other taxes or fees above what is customary for any business.

Commissioner Boswell asked about age limits for those entering the dispensaries, would other products be for sale, and the cash only business model.

Ms. Sharp explained the age limitations per the State regulations would allow adults with physician letters to apply for the MMJ card and children with illness would require physician letters and parents permission.  The patents and the caregivers could go into the facilities. The caregivers must be 21. She said that she checked with the state and they did not have a determination yet if other items would be allowed to be sold in the dispensary.  But the Point of Sale process for Medical Marijuana is very different from other products and the two most like will not be combined. She said that it is a cash only business because of Federal regulations. The regulations for security in the facilities are very detailed per the state.  She said this is why staff recommended not being open overnight- the hours of operation can be regulated by the city as long they are not unduly burdensome.

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any other questions of staff.  Hearing none, he opened the Public Hearing portion for this case. He asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak.

Julia Mees, 1039 Poplar Lane, Liberty
· Member of Liberty Alliance for Youth
· In favor of keeping buffer at 1000 feet
· Read a statement regarding statistics how marijuana usage affects children
· Stated that there will not be prescriptions for a specific amount of medical marijuana which could lead to an excess getting into hands of children.
· City can exercise the control it has by using maximum allowed buffers and hours of operation

Angie Reed, 324 Preston
· Member of Liberty Alliance for Youth
· In favor of keeping buffer at 1000 feet
· Youth are at risk 

Kendra Calloway, 13300 Vine, Kearney
· In favor of keeping buffer at 1000 feet, for kids traveling in city

Vicki Ward, 9101N Bellefontain KC, MO 
· Tri County Mental Health
· Advocate for pushing back the first use of marijuana as long as possible for long term health reasons.
· Buffers and hours of operation are in City control.  Use these to advantage of citizens.
· Best research can be found at  The High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area program (HIDTA)
· In favor of keeping buffer at 1000 feet

Beau Rhienhart, 11309 Zachery Dr.
· Believes that a 100 foot buffer is more appropriate
· MMJ Industry is very regulated and professional
· The 1,000 ft buffer would make locating any MMJ business in Liberty very difficult
· Physical security on site and regarding HIPAA regulation is very tight and controlled
· In his experience the industry is trending to using a Cash App instead of actual cash in transactions
· Being overly restrictive would not serve citizens of Liberty

Chairman Rosekrans closed the Public Hearing portion for this case.

Commissioner Holt asked if a variance could be allowed to reduce buffers.

Ms. Sharp stated that as a general rule variances can be requested for any part of the UDO.  In MMJ cases it would be unclear if State regulations would allow this.

Commissioner Dilts stated that buffers in other states are very telling. She is concerned with Issues of safety, illegal cards, and children possessing marijuana.  In favor of large buffer.  Easier to reduce than extend in the future.

Commissioner Howard is concerned with who is responsible for abuses of the system.

Ms. Sharp stated that the State Department of Health and Senior Services has jurisdiction.

Commissioner Evans asked if there were areas available in Liberty for an MMJ business with 1000 foot buffers.

Ms. Sharp directed the Commission to the draft maps that show what different range of buffers would look like in Liberty.

Action: Commissioner Holt moved to approve the case with a 1,000 foot buffer and hours of operation restricted to 8am – 10 pm.   Commissioner Waterman seconded the motion.

Commissioner Dilts is in favor.  Concerns about safety and buffers.
Commissioner Holt is in favor.  It is easier to reduce buffers if needed as opposed to increase them.
Commissioner Boswell is in favor.  Better to be more restrictive to start.
Commissioner Evans is in favor.  This is the will of the voters of the state.
Commissioner Reinier is in favor.  Seems to be a highly regulated industry and this motion is a good compromise.
Commissioner Waterman is in favor.  The public has spoken, City’s duty to administer properly.
Commissioner Howard is in favor.  
Chairman Rosekrans is in favor.  Democracy at work.  Adjustments can be made if needed in the future.
[bookmark: _GoBack]
Vote: Motion passed 8-0-0
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Reinier, Rosekrans, and Waterman
No: None
Abstain: 

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Monday, June 24, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.


IX.	Public Comments
There was no public comment.

X.	Other Business
a. Ms. Sharp updated the Commission on current development projects.  

XI.	Future Meeting Schedule

The next regular session is scheduled for Tuesday, July 9, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 

X.	Adjournment
Commissioner Waterman moved to adjourn, Commissioner Reinier seconded. Chairman Rosekrans adjourned the meeting at 9:00 pm.
	Page 7	
